

Business Services Contracts Office

5735 47th Avenue ● Sacramento, CA 95824 (916) 643-2464

Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer Tina Alvarez-Bevens, Contract Specialist

BID INSTRUCTIONS / BID FORMS

For

GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

Bid No. 0350-418 Bids Due: May 26, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Procurement and Contracting Requirements

Division 0	Section	<u>Title</u>
	00 01 01	Project Title Page
	00 01 10	Table of Contents
	00 01 15	List of Drawings

Solicitation

00 11 16 Notice to Bidders

Instructions for Procurement

00 21 13	Instructions to Bidders
00 21 13.1	Bidder Information and Forms

Available Information

00 31 19	Existing Conditions
00 31 32	Geotechnical Data

Procurement Forms and Supplements

00 41 13	Bid Form and Proposal
00 43 13	Bid Bond
00 43 36	Designated Subcontractors List
00 45 01	Site Visit Certification
00 45 19	Non-Collusion Declaration
00 45 19.01	Iran Contracting Act Certification

Post Award Documents (for reference only, do not submit with bid)

00 52 13	Agreement
00 61 13.13	Performance Bond
00 61 13.16	Payment Bond
00 45 26	Workers' Compensation Certification
00 45 46.01	Prevailing Wage Certification
00 45 46.03	Drug-Free Workplace Certification
00 45 46.04	Tobacco-Free Environment Certification
00 45 46.05	Hazardous Materials Certification
00 45 46.06	Lead-Based Materials Certification
00 45 46.07	Imported Materials Certification
00 45 46.08	Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification
00 45 46.13	Project Labor Agreement, Agreement to be Bound
00 45 46.16	Project Labor Agreement, Subcontractor
00 65 36	Guarantee Form
	00 61 13.13 00 61 13.16 00 45 26 00 45 46.01 00 45 46.03 00 45 46.04 00 45 46.05 00 45 46.06 00 45 46.07 00 45 46.08 00 45 46.13

Conditions of the Contract

00 72 13	General Conditions – view online at
	www.scusd.edu/construction-projects
00 73 13	Special Conditions

DOCUMENT 00 01 15

LIST OF DRAWINGS

DRAWINGS

Sheet number	Description
ARCHITECTURAL	
A0	COVER SHEET
AS0.1	OVERALL SITE PLAN
AS0.1a	OVERALL SITE PLAN WITH LFA REVIEW
AD1	DEMOLITION SITE PLANS
AS1	ENLARGED SITE PLANS
A1	DETAILS AND ACCESSIBILITY SHEET
CIVIL	
C0.1	CIVIL GENERAL NOTES AND ABBREVIATIONS
C0.2	TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
C1.1	DEMOLITION PLAN
C1.2	ENGINEERED FILL PLAN
C2.1	GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C3.1	PAVING AND STRIPING PLAN
C4.1	DETAILS AND SECTIONS
C4.2	DETAILS AND SECTIONS
C1.1-ALT	ADD ALTERNATE DEMOLITION PLAN
C1.2-ALT	ADD ALTERNATE ENGINEERED FILL PLAN
C2.1-ALT	ADD ALTERNATE GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C3.1-ALT	ADD ALTERNATE PAVING AND STRIPING PLAN
SHADE STRUCTURE	
RAM1.0	Order Form
RAM1.1	Notes and Special Inspections
RAM2.2	Foundation Plan Spread Pad - RAM 30
RAM3.1	Framing Plan - RAM 30
RAM4.2	Frame Connection Details - RAM 30
RAM4.3	Section Details - RAM 30
RAM5.1	Architectural Views - RAM 30
RAM6.0	Roof Connection Details
RAM7.0	Misc Design Options

DOCUMENT 00 11 16

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

Notice is hereby given that the governing board ("Board") of the Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") will receive sealed bids for the following project, **Bid No. 0350-418, GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND** ("Project" or "Contract"):

- 1. The Project consists of: Removing and replacing asphalt paving; removing and replacing playground structure; installing shade structure with concrete pad. Per plans and specifications prepared by HMR Architects. The estimate for this project is \$854,000.
- 2. To bid on this Project, the Bidder is required to possess one or more of the following State of California contractors' license(s): A. The Bidder's license(s) must remain active and in good standing throughout the term of the Contract.
- 3. To bid on this Project, the Bidder is required to be registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to the Labor Code.
- 4. The District utilizes construction program management software, e-Builder™, for its construction projects. To register with e-Builder and access bid packages, please go to: https://bidders.e-builder.net/landing?bidpackageid=3a844815-05fc-4f74-8e4c-b88e68345c29

This link will provide registration instructions and allow you access to the bid documents, plans and specifications. All bid information, documents, etc. will be in e-Builder™. If you need technical assistance, please contact technical support at e-Builder, (888) 288-5717, or support@e-builder.net. You may also contact Tina Alvarez-Bevens in the SCUSD Contracts Office at Tina-Alvarez-Bevens@scusd.edu.

- 5. Bids should be submitted electronically through e-Builder. The bids will be received until **2:00** p.m. on May **26**, **2022**. At or after which time the bids will be opened privately due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Bid tabulation will be posted within one hour of the bid deadline in the e-Builder Bid Documents and at www.scusd.edu/construction-projects-bids.
- 6. The Bidder is required to be registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations. The Bidder's registration must remain active throughout the term of the Contract.
 - A. Bidders must complete the "Determination of Bidder Responsibility Questionnaire" (included in Bid Form). If a Bidder has completed the questionnaire in response to a District project within the last twelve (12) months, only a letter stating the previously submitted data is still true and accurate, is required.
- 7. All bids shall be on the form provided by the District. Each bid must conform and be responsive to all pertinent Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, the Instructions to Bidders.
- 8. A bid bond by an admitted surety insurer on the form provided by the District, a cashier's check or a certified check, drawn to the order of the Sacramento City Unified School District, in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total bid price, shall accompany the Bid Form and Proposal, as a guarantee that the Bidder will, within seven (7) calendar days after the date of the Notice of Award, enter into a contract with the District for the performance of the services as stipulated in the bid.

9. A mandatory pre-bid conference and site visit will be held on 5/10/2022 at 9:00 a.m., at 6490 Harmon Drive, Sacramento, California. All participants are required to meet in front of the school, near the flagpole. Bidders are required to arrive for the pre-bid conference on time and to sign an attendance list.

COVID-19 SITE WALK SAFETY PRECAUTIONS WILL BE ENFORCED:

- Face coverings are required to be worn by all persons (District staff and visitors).
 - o These face coverings must cover one's nose and mouth.
 - o Stay 6 feet apart, even with a face covering.
- 10. The successful Bidder shall be required to furnish a 100% Performance Bond and a 100% Payment Bond if it is awarded the Contract for the Work.
- 11. The successful Bidder may substitute securities for any monies withheld by the District to ensure performance under the Contract, in accordance with the provisions of section 22300 of the Public Contract Code.
- 12. The Contractor and all Subcontractors under the Contractor shall pay all workers on all Work performed pursuant to this Contract not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, for the type of work performed and the locality in which the work is to be performed within the boundaries of the District, pursuant to section 1770 et seq. of the California Labor Code. Prevailing wage rates are also available from the District or on the Internet at: http://www.dir.ca.gov.
- 13. This Project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and subject to the requirements of Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. The successful Bidder shall comply with all requirements of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, Articles 1-5 of the Labor Code.
- 14. The District has entered into a Project Labor Agreement that is applicable to this Project. A copy of the Project Labor Agreement is available on the District's website, www.scusd.edu/project-labor-agreement-1. The successful bidder and all subcontractors will be required to agree to be bound by the Project Labor Agreement.
- 15. The Contractor and all Subcontractors under the Contractor shall comply with applicable federal, State, and local requirements relating to COVID-19 or other public health emergency/epidemic/pandemic including, if required, preparing, posting, and implementing a Social Distancing Protocol. Contractor shall further comply with the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education Resolution No. 3211 of October 12, 2021, requiring workers on District sites to be fully vaccinated against COVID-19.
- 16. The District shall award the Contract, if it awards it at all, to the lowest responsive responsible bidder based on The base bid amount only.
- 17. The Board reserves the right to reject any and all bids and/or waive any irregularity in any bid received. If the District awards the Contract, the security of unsuccessful bidder(s) shall be returned within sixty (60) days from the time the award is made. Unless otherwise required by law, no bidder may withdraw its bid for ninety (90) days after the date of the bid opening.

DOCUMENT 00 21 13¶

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Contractors shall follow the instructions in this document, and shall submit all documents, forms, and information required for consideration of a Bid.

Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") will evaluate information submitted by the apparent low Bidder and, if incomplete or unsatisfactory to District, Bidder's bid may be rejected at the sole discretion of District.

- 1. Bids are requested for a general construction contract, or work described in general, ("Work") for the following project: 0350-418, Genevieve Didion Playground ("Project").
- 2. District will receive sealed Bids from Bidders as stipulated in the Notice to Bidders.
- 3. Bids must be submitted electronically in e-Builder.
- 4. Bids will be opened at or after the time indicated for receipt of bids.
- 5. Bidders must submit Bids on the documents titled Bid Form and Proposal and must submit all other required District forms. Bids not submitted on the District's required forms shall be deemed nonresponsive and shall not be considered. Additional sheets required to fully respond to requested information are permissible.
- 6. Bidders shall not modify the Bid Form and Proposal or qualify their bids. Bidders shall not submit to the District a re-formatted, re-typed, altered, modified, or otherwise recreated version of the Bid Form and Proposal or other District-provided document.
- 7. Bids shall be clearly written and without erasure or deletions. District reserves the right to reject any bid containing erasures, deletions, or illegible contents.
- 8. Bidders must supply all information required by each Bid Document. Bids must be full and complete. District reserves the right in its sole discretion to reject any Bid as non-responsive as a result of any error or omission in the Bid. Bidders must complete and submit all of the following documents with the Bid Form and Proposal:
 - a. Bid Bond on the District's form, or other security.
 - b. Designated Subcontractors List.
 - c. Site Visit Certification, if a site visit was required.
 - d. Non-Collusion Declaration.
- 9. Bidders must submit with their Bids a cashier's check or a certified check payable to District, or a bid bond by an admitted surety insurer of not less than ten percent (10%) of amount of base Bid, plus all additive alternates ("Bid Bond"). If Bidder chooses to provide a Bid Bond as security, Bidder must use the required form of corporate surety provided by District. The Surety on Bidder's Bid Bond must be an insurer admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue surety bonds in the State of California. Bids submitted without necessary bid security will be deemed non-responsive and will not be considered.
- 10. If Bidder to whom a contract is awarded ("Contract" or "Agreement") fails or neglects to enter into Contract and submit required bonds, insurance certificates, and all other required

documents, within **SEVEN (7)** calendar days after the date of the Notice of Award, District may deposit Bid Bond, cash, cashier's check, or certified check for collection, and proceeds thereof may be retained by District as liquidated damages for failure of Bidder to enter into Contract, in the sole discretion of District. It is agreed that calculation of damages District may suffer as a result of Bidder's failure to enter into the Contract would be extremely difficult and impractical to determine and that the amount of the Bidder's required bid security shall be the agreed and conclusively presumed amount of damages.

- 11. Bidders must submit with the Bid the Designated Subcontractors List for those subcontractors who will perform any portion of the Project, ("Subcontractor") including labor, rendering of service, or specially fabricating and installing a portion of the Work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the plans and specifications, in excess of one half of one percent (0.5%) of the total Bid. Failure to submit this list when required by law shall result in bid being deemed nonresponsive and the bid will not be considered.
- 12. All of the listed subcontractors are required to be registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to the Labor Code.
 - a. An inadvertent error in listing the California contractor license number on the Designated Subcontractors List shall not be grounds for filing a bid protest or grounds for considering the bid nonresponsive if the correct contractor's license number is submitted to the District within 24 hours after the bid opening and the corrected number corresponds with the submitted name and location for that subcontractor.
 - b. An inadvertent error listing an unregistered subcontractor shall not be grounds for filing a bid protest or grounds for considering the bid nonresponsive provided that any of the following apply:
 - (1) The subcontractor is registered prior to the bid opening.
 - (2) The subcontractor is registered and has paid the penalty registration fee within 24 hours after the bid opening.
 - (3) The subcontractor is replaced by another registered subcontractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 4107.
- 13. If a mandatory pre-bid conference and site visit ("Site Visit") is required as referenced in the Notice to Bidders, then Bidders must submit the Site Visit Certification with their Bid. District will transmit to all prospective Bidders of record such Addenda as District in its discretion considers necessary in response to questions arising at the Site Visit. Oral statements shall not be relied upon and will not be binding or legally effective. Addenda issued by the District as a result of the Site Visit, if any, shall constitute the sole and exclusive record and statement of the results of the Site Visit.
- 14. Bidders shall submit the Non-Collusion Declaration with their Bids. Bids submitted without the Non-Collusion Declaration shall be deemed non-responsive and will not be considered.
- 15. The Contractor and all Subcontractors under the Contractor shall pay all workers on all work performed pursuant to this Contract not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, for the type of work performed and the locality in which the work is to be performed within the boundaries of the District, pursuant to sections 1770 et seq. of the California Labor Code. Copies of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the Contract, as determined by Director of the Department of Industrial Relations,

- are available upon request at the District's principal office. Prevailing wage rates are also available on the internet at http://www.dir.ca.gov.
- 16. The District has entered into a Project Labor Agreement that is applicable to this Project. A copy of the Project Labor Agreement is available on the District's website, www.scusd.edu/project-labor-agreement-1. The successful bidder and all subcontractors will be required to agree to be bound by the Project Labor Agreement.
- 17. Submission of Bid signifies careful examination of the District's proposed Contract Documents for the Project and complete understanding of the nature, extent, and location of Work to be performed. Bidders must complete the tasks listed below as a condition to bidding, and submission of a Bid shall constitute the Bidder's express representation to District that Bidder has fully completed the following:
 - a. Bidder has visited the Site, if required, and has examined thoroughly and understood the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work, Project and Work sites, locality, actual conditions, as-built conditions, and all local conditions and federal, state and local laws, and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of Work or that relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder and safety precautions and programs incident thereto;
 - b. Bidder has conducted or obtained and has understood all examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, and studies that pertain to the subsurface conditions, asbuilt conditions, underground facilities, and all other physical conditions at or contiguous to the Work Site or otherwise that may affect the cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of Work, as Bidder considers necessary for the performance or furnishing of Work at the Contract Sum, within the Contract Time, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of the General Conditions; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies, or similar information or data are or will be required by Bidder for such purposes;
 - c. Bidder has correlated its knowledge and the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents;
 - d. Bidder has given the District prompt written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that it has discovered in or among the Contract Documents and the actual conditions, and the written resolution(s) thereof by the District is/are acceptable to Bidder;
 - e. Bidder has made a complete disclosure in writing to the District of all facts bearing upon any possible interest, direct or indirect, that Bidder believes any representative of the District or other officer or employee of the District presently has or will have in this Contract or in the performance thereof or in any portion of the profits thereof;
 - f. Bidder must, prior to bidding, perform the work, investigations, research, and analysis required by this document and that Bidder represented in its Bid Form and Proposal and the Contract that it performed prior to bidding. Contractor under this Contract is charged with all information and knowledge that a reasonable bidder would ascertain from having performed this required work, investigation, research, and analysis. Bid prices must include entire cost of all work "incidental" to completion of the Work.
 - g. <u>Conditions Shown on the Contract Documents</u>: Information as to underground conditions, as-built conditions, or other conditions or obstructions, indicated in the

Contract Documents, e.g., on Drawings or in Specifications, has been obtained with reasonable care, and has been recorded in good faith. However, District only warrants, and Contractor may only rely, on the accuracy of limited types of information.

- (1) As to above-ground conditions or as-built conditions shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, there is no warranty, express or implied, or any representation express or implied, that such information is correctly shown or indicated. This information is verifiable by independent investigation and Contractor is required to make such verification as a condition to bidding. In submitting its Bid, Contractor shall rely on the results of its own independent investigation. In submitting its Bid, Contractor shall not rely on District-supplied information regarding above-ground conditions or as-built conditions.
- (2) As to any subsurface condition shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, Contractor may rely only upon the general accuracy of actual reported depths, actual reported character of materials, actual reported soil types, actual reported water conditions, or actual obstructions shown or indicated. District is not responsible for the completeness of such information for bidding or construction; nor is District responsible in any way for any conclusions or opinions that the Contractor has drawn from such information; nor is the District responsible for subsurface conditions that are not specifically shown (for example, District is not responsible for soil conditions in areas contiguous to areas where a subsurface condition is shown).
- h. <u>Conditions Shown in Reports and Drawings Supplied for Informational Purposes</u>: Reference is made to the document entitled Geotechnical Data, and the document entitled Existing Conditions, for identification of:
 - (1) <u>Subsurface Conditions</u>: Those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site that have been utilized by Architect in preparing the Contract Documents; and
 - (2) <u>Physical Conditions</u>: Those drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site that has been utilized by Architect in preparing the Contract Documents.
 - (3) These reports and drawings are **not** Contract Documents and, except for any "technical" data regarding subsurface conditions specifically identified in Geotechnical Data and Existing Conditions, and underground facilities data, Contractor may not in any manner rely on the information in these reports and drawings. Subject to the foregoing, Contractor must make its own independent investigation of all conditions affecting the Work and must not rely on information provided by District.
- 18. Bids shall be based on products and systems specified in Contract Documents or listed by name in Addenda. Whenever in the Specifications any materials, process, or article is indicated or specified by grade, patent, or proprietary name, or by name of manufacturer, that Specification shall be deemed to be followed by the words "or equal." Bidder may, unless otherwise stated, offer any material, process, or article that shall be substantially equal or better in every respect to that so indicated or specified. The District is not responsible and/or liable in any way for a Contractor's damages and/or claims related, in any way, to that Contractor's basing its bid on any requested substitution that the District has not approved in advance and in writing. Contractors who submit requests for substitutions prior to the award of the Contract must do so in writing and in compliance with Public Contract Code section 3400. All requests must comply with the following:

- a. District must receive any notice of request for substitution of a specified item a minimum of **TEN** (10) calendar days prior to bid opening. The Successful Bidder will not be allowed to substitute specified items unless properly noticed.
- b. Within 35 days after the date of the Notice of Award, the Successful Bidder shall submit data substantiating the request(s) for all substitution(s) containing sufficient information to assess acceptability of product or system and impact on Project, including, without limitation, the requirements specified in the Special Conditions and the Specifications. Insufficient information shall be grounds for rejection of substitution.
- c. Approved substitutions, if any, shall be listed in Addenda. District reserves the right not to act upon submittals of substitutions until after bid opening.
- d. Substitutions may be requested after Contract has been awarded only if indicated in and in accordance with requirements specified in the Special Conditions and the Specifications.
- 19. Bidders may examine any available "as-built" drawings of previous work by giving District reasonable advance notice. District will not be responsible for accuracy of "as-built" drawings. The document entitled Existing Conditions applies to all supplied "as-built" drawings.
- 20. All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed in writing to the District Contracts Office at <u>Tina-Alvarez-Bevens@scusd.edu</u>. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the District in response to such questions will be issued in writing by Addenda posted on e-Builder™ and the District website, <u>www.scusd.edu/construction-projects-bids</u> no later than May 23, 2022. Questions received after May 16, 2022 may not be answered. Only questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding. Oral statements and other interpretations or clarifications shall not be relied upon and will be binding or legal effect.
 - Addenda may also be issued to modify other parts of the Contract Documents, as deemed advisable by the District.
- 21. Each Bidder must acknowledge each Addendum in its Bid Form and Proposal by number or its Bid shall be considered non-responsive. Each Addendum shall be part of the Contract Documents. A complete listing of Addenda may be obtained from the District.
- 22. The Contract may include alternates. Alternates are defined as alternate products, materials, equipment, systems, methods, or major elements of the construction that may, at the District's option and under terms established in the Contract and pursuant to section 20103.8 of the Public Contract Code, be selected for the Work.
- 23. The District shall award the Contract, if it awards it at all, to the lowest responsive responsible bidder based on the criteria as indicated in the Notice to Bidders. In the event two or more responsible bidders submit identical bids, the District shall select the Bidder to whom to award the Contract by lot.
- 24. <u>Time for Completion</u>: District may issue a Notice to Proceed within <u>NINETY (90) days</u> from the date of the Notice of Award. Once Contractor has received the Notice to Proceed, Contractor shall complete the Work within sixty (60) calendar days. Construction is scheduled to begin on or around June 20, 2022

- a. In the event that the District desires to postpone issuing the Notice to Proceed beyond this 90-day period, it is expressly understood that with reasonable notice to the Contractor, the District may postpone issuing the Notice to Proceed.
- b. It is further expressly understood by Contractor that Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim of additional compensation as a result of the postponement of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed beyond a 90-day period. If the Contractor believes that a postponement of issuance of the Notice to Proceed will cause a hardship to the Contractor, the Contractor may terminate the Contract. Contractor's termination due to a postponement beyond this 90-day period shall be by written notice to District within **TEN (10)** calendar days after receipt by Contractor of District's notice of postponement.
- c. It is further understood by the Contractor that in the event that Contractor terminates the Contract as a result of postponement by the District, the District shall only be obligated to pay Contractor for the Work that Contractor had performed at the time of notification of postponement and which the District had in writing authorized Contractor to perform prior to issuing a Notice to Proceed.
- d. Should the Contractor terminate the Contract as a result of a notice of postponement, District shall have the authority to award the Contract to the next lowest responsive responsible Bidder.
- 25. The Bidder to whom a Contract is awarded shall execute and submit the following documents by 5:00 p.m. of the **SEVENTH (7th)** calendar day following the date of the Notice of Award. Failure to properly and timely submit these documents entitles District to reject the bid as non-responsive.
 - a. Agreement: To be executed by successful Bidder.
 - b. <u>Performance Bond</u> (100% of Contract Price): On the form provided in the Contract Documents and fully executed as indicated on the form.
 - c. <u>Payment Bond</u> (100%) (Contractor's Labor and Material Bond): On the form provided in the Contract Documents and fully executed as indicated on the form.
 - d. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements, as required.
 - e. Workers' Compensation Certification.
 - f. Prevailing Wage and Related Labor Requirements Certification.
 - g. Drug-Free Workplace Certification.
 - h. Tobacco-Free Environment Certification.
 - i. Hazardous Materials Certification.
 - j. Lead-Based Materials Certification.
 - k. Imported Materials Certification.
 - I. Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification.
 - m. COVID-19 Vaccination / Testing Certification

- 26. Any Bid protest by any Bidder regarding any other Bid must be submitted in writing to the District, before 5:00 p.m. of the **THIRD (3rd)** business day following Bid opening.
 - a. Only a Bidder who has actually submitted a Bid, and who could be awarded the Contract if the bid protest is upheld, is eligible to submit a Bid protest. Subcontractors are not eligible to submit Bid protests. A Bidder may not rely on the bid protest submitted by another Bidder.
 - b. A Bid protest must contain a complete statement of any and all bases for the protest and all supporting documentation. Materials submitted after the Bid protest deadline will not be considered.
 - c. The protest must refer to the specific portions of all documents that form the basis for the protest.
 - (1) Without limitation to any other basis for protest, an inadvertent error in listing the California contractor's license number on the Designated Subcontractors List shall not be grounds for filing a Bid protest or grounds for considering the Bid nonresponsive if the correct contractor's license number is submitted to the District within 24 hours after the bid opening and the corrected number corresponds with the submitted name and location for that subcontractor.
 - (2) Without limitation to any other basis for protest, an inadvertent error listing an unregistered subcontractor shall not be grounds for filing a Bid protest or grounds for considering the bid nonresponsive provided that any of the following apply:
 - (a) The Subcontractor is registered prior to the Bid opening.
 - (b) The Subcontractor is registered and has paid the penalty registration fee within 24 hours after the Bid opening.
 - (c) The subcontractor is replaced by another registered Subcontractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 4107.
 - d. The protest must include the name, address and telephone number of the person representing the protesting party.
 - e. The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the protest and any attached documentation to all other parties with a direct financial interest that may be adversely affected by the outcome of the protest. Such parties shall include all other Bidders or proposers who appear to have a reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.
 - f. The procedure and time limits set forth in this paragraph are mandatory and are each Bidder's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of Bid protest. Failure to comply with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any right to further pursue the Bid protest, including filing a Government Code Claim or legal proceedings.
- 27. District reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation the right to reject any or all nonconforming, non-responsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids, to re-bid, and to reject the Bid of any Bidder if District believes that it would not be in the best interest of the District to make an award to that Bidder, whether because the Bid is not responsive or the Bidder is unqualified or of doubtful financial ability or fails to meet any other pertinent standard or criteria established by District. District also reserves the right to waive any inconsequential deviations or irregularities in any bid. For purposes of this paragraph, an

- "unbalanced bid" is one having nominal prices for some work items and/or enhanced prices for other work items.
- 28. Discrepancies between written words and figures, or words and numerals, will be resolved in favor of figures or numerals.
- 29. It is the policy of the District that no qualified person shall be excluded from participating in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination in any consideration leading to the award of contract, based on race, color, gender, sexual orientation, political affiliation, age, ancestry, religion, marital status, national origin, medical condition or disability. The Successful Bidder and its subcontractors shall comply with applicable federal and state laws, including, but not limited to the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, beginning with Government Code section 12900, and Labor Code section 1735.
- 30. Prior to the award of Contract, District reserves the right to consider the responsibility of the Bidder. District may conduct investigations as District deems necessary to assist in the evaluation of any bid and to establish the responsibility, including, without limitation, qualifications and financial ability of Bidders, proposed subcontractors, suppliers, and other persons and organizations to perform and furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents to District's satisfaction within the prescribed time.
- 31. Bidder expressly acknowledges that it is familiar with and capable of complying with applicable federal, State, and local requirements relating to COVID-19 or other public health emergency/epidemic/pandemic and such costs shall be included in the bid.

DOCUMENT 00 21 13.1

BIDDER INFORMATION AND FORMS

DETERMINATION OF BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY QUESTIONNAIRE

The Public Contract Code requires that school districts, in certain circumstances, bid and award public contracts to the lowest <u>responsive</u> and <u>responsible</u> bidder. California law establishes a very comprehensive standard concerning bidder responsibility, such that a school agency has wide discretion and broad authority to make its determination of bidder responsibility on a case-by-case basis. Such authority empowers the District to conduct its own investigation, and make an assessment of the facts and circumstances to ascertain the quality, fitness, capacity and trustworthiness of each bidder. It is the purpose of this questionnaire to assist in determining contractor responsibility, and to aid the District in selecting the lowest responsible bidder (when the District does not opt to reject all bids).

Bidders must have completed the questionnaire, truthfully and completely, at least once in the past twelve (12) months to be considered for award on this project. If you completed this questionnaire within the past twelve (12) months, you must certify that the data previously submitted is still true and accurate. Bidders must either complete the entire questionnaire or certify the previously submitted data as still current, truthful, and accurate, to be determined responsible and responsive to the bid announcement.

Bidders must answer all questions and provide all requested information, where applicable. If the answer to any question is "none", or is not applicable, please so state in writing. The District will evaluate bidders not only on the information contained in this questionnaire, but also using any and all information available through other sources, including District records, staff or representatives, interviews, and/or reference checks. Based on a complete evaluation, the awarding authority has sole and discretionary judgment to determine if the bidder is deemed responsible and/or qualified to perform the work. Bidders discovered to have omitted required information or provided false, misleading, or substantively incorrect statements, as determined solely by the District, will be disqualified from bidding. The District reserves the right to waive minor irregularities and to make all final determinations regarding prospective bidders' responsibility, fitness, and/or qualifications.

1. Experience: Describe three (3) public works or school district projects that your firm completed within the last three years, either as a Prime or Subcontractor, where your scope of work was similar in building size, scope, contract value and complexity to the proposed project.

A. Project Name:		
	Date completed:	
Project Description (Scope of work, similarities to current advertised project):		
Owner's Representative Name:	Ph number:	
Construction Manager Name:	Ph number:	
General Contractor Name	Ph number:	
(If you were a Subcontractor):		
Name of Architect:	Number of RFIs	
Your base contract amount: \$	Final contract amount : \$	
Explain difference from Base Contract amou	unt, if any	

Initial contract time:	tial contract time: days Time extensions:			
ays past contract completion date (excl. authorized time extensions):			days	
B. Project Name:				
Location:		Date completed:		
Project Description (Scope of wor	k, similaritie	s to current advertised project):		
Owner's Representative Name: _		Ph number:		
Construction Manager Name:		Ph number:		
General Contractor Name		Ph number:		
(If you were a Subcontractor):				
Name of Architect:		Number of RFIs		
Your base contract amount: \$		Final contract amount: \$		
Explain difference from Base Con	tract amount	., if any		
Initial contract time:	days	Time extensions:	days	
Days past contract completion da	te (excl. aut	horized time extensions):	days	
C. Project Name:				
		Date completed:		
Project Description (Scope of wor	k, similaritie	s to current advertised project):		
Owner's Representative Name: _		Ph number:		
Construction Manager Name:		Ph number:		
General Contractor Name		Ph number:		
(If you were a Subcontractor):				
Name of Architect:		Number of RFIs		
Your base contract amount: \$		Final contract amount: \$		
Explain difference from Base Con	tract amount	c, if any		
Initial contract time:	days	Time extensions:	days	
Days past contract completion date (excl. authorized time extensions):			days	

2. Financial Data: Complete the table below using data from your most recent completed accounting fiscal year and most recent completed accounting fiscal quarter. (Bidder may be required to submit a financial statement upon request.).

Financial Ratios	Ratio Calculation	Previous Fiscal Year	Ratio 1	Most Recent Quarter	Ratio 2
Current	Current Assets	а		е	
Ratio	Current Liabilities	b	a / b	f	e / f
Debt	Total Debt	С		g	
Ratio	Total Net Worth	d	c / d	h	g / h

Wort	:h				
3. Licensing: Your California for the ap	License Nur	nber:assification for the p	(Bio	dder must be a licens advertised.)	sed contractor i
·		een revoked or susp		,	
YES NO the revocation of	, , ,		e dates, allege	ed misconduct, findin	gs, and terms o
		en filed with the Co mal hearing or inqu		te License Board aga	inst your
YES NO	If yes, pro	ovide explanation			
c. Have you ev	er been lice	nsed in California ur	nder a differer	nt name or license no	umber?
YES NO	If yes, pro	ovide name and/or li	icense numbe	r.	
Was that license	e ever revok	ed or suspended?			
YES NO	If yes, pro	ovide explanation			
1. Safety: Has Cal irm in the past thro	•	•	or any Air Qua	ality Management Dis	strict cited your
YES NO	If yes, att	ach a copy and des	cription of eac	ch citation.	

in med	Ditration and Litigation History : Has your firm had any claims, litigation, or disputes ending diation or arbitration, or termination for cause associated with any project (either by your any or against your company) in the past five (5) years?
	YES NO If yes, attach a description of each instance including details of total claim amount, settlement amount and owner's name and phone number.
6. Pri	or Disqualifications, Criminal Matters, and Related Civil Suits:
a.	Has your firm ever been disqualified from performing work for the Sacramento City Unified School District?
	YES NO If yes, provide the following information:
	Project name:
	Date of disqualification:
	Duration of disqualification:
	Reason for disqualification:
b.	Has your firm ever been disqualified from performing work for any contracting entity other than the Sacramento City Unified School District:
	YES NO If yes, provide the following information:
	Contracting Entity Name:
	Date of disqualification:
	Duration of disqualification:
	Reason for disqualification:
C.	Has your firm or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been found liable in a civil suit or found guilty in a criminal action for making any false claim or material misrepresentation to any public agency or entity?
	YES NO If "yes," explain who was involved, the name of the public agency, the date of the investigation and the grounds for the finding.
d.	Has your firm or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been convicted of a crime involving
	any federal, state, or local law related to construction work, fraud, theft, or other act of dishonesty?
	YES NO If "yes," explain who was involved, the name of the public agency, the date of the conviction and the grounds for the conviction.

Questionnaire Certification

The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury is current, true and accurate, and that this declara	that all information submitted in this questionnaire tion was executed by the undersigned on:
(Date)	
(Name and Title) printed or typed	
(Signature)	
(Firm Name)	
•	R
Previously Submitted Qu	estionnaire Certification
(Questionnaires completed more than twelve no longe	e (12) months before the current bid date are er valid)
The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury District remains to be complete, true, and correct, undersigned on:	
(Date)	
(Name and Title) printed or typed	
(Signature)	
(Firm Name)	_

DOCUMENT 00 31 19

EXISTING CONDITIONS

32. Summary

This document describes existing conditions at or near the Project, and use of information available regarding existing conditions. This document is **not** part of the Contract Documents. See General Conditions for definition(s) of terms used herein.

33. Reports and Information on Existing Conditions

- a. Documents providing a general description of the Site and conditions of the Work may have been collected by Sacramento City Unified School District ("District"), its consultants, contractors, and tenants. These documents may include previous contracts, contract specifications, tenant improvement contracts, as-built drawings, utility drawings, and information regarding underground facilities.
- b. Information regarding existing conditions may be inspected at the District offices or the Construction Manager's offices, if any, and copies may be obtained at cost of reproduction and handling upon Bidder's agreement to pay for such copies. These reports, documents, and other information are **not** part of the Contract Documents.
- c. Information regarding existing conditions may also be included in the Project Manual, but shall **not** be considered part of the Contract Documents.
- d. Prior to commencing this Work, Contractor and the District's representative shall survey the Site to document the condition of the Site. Contractor will record the survey in digital videotape format and provide an electronic copy to the District within fourteen (14) days of the survey.
- e. Contractor may also document any pre-existing conditions in writing, provided that both the Contractor and the District's representative agree on said conditions and sign a memorandum documenting the same.
- f. The reports and other data or information regarding existing conditions and underground facilities at or contiguous to the Project are the following:
 - (1) Topographic Survey from Warren Consulting Engineers dated 1/5/22

34. Use of Information

- a. Information regarding existing conditions was obtained only for use of District and its consultants, contractors, and tenants for planning and design and is <u>not</u> part of the Contract Documents.
- b. District does not warrant, and makes no representation regarding, the accuracy or thoroughness of any information regarding existing conditions. Bidder represents and agrees that in submitting a bid it is not relying on any information regarding existing conditions supplied by District.
- c. Under no circumstances shall District be deemed to warrant or represent existing above-ground conditions, as-built conditions, or other actual conditions, verifiable by independent investigation. These conditions are verifiable by Contractor by the performance of its own independent investigation that Contractor must perform as a

- condition to bidding and Contractor should not and shall not rely on this information or any other information supplied by District regarding existing conditions.
- d. Any information shown or indicated in the reports and other data supplied herein with respect to existing underground facilities at or contiguous to the Project may be based upon information and data furnished to District by the District's employees and/or consultants or builders of such underground facilities or others. District does not assume responsibility for the completeness of this information, and Bidder is solely responsible for any interpretation or conclusion drawn from this information.
- e. District shall be responsible only for the general accuracy of information regarding underground facilities, and only for those underground facilities that are owned by District, and only where Bidder has conducted the independent investigation required of it pursuant to the Instructions to Bidders, and discrepancies are not apparent.

35. Investigations/Site Examinations

- a. Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder is responsible for conducting or obtaining any additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface, and underground facilities) at or contiguous to the Site or otherwise, that may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of Work or that relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder and safety precautions and programs incident thereto or that Bidder deems necessary to determine its Bid for performing and furnishing the Work in accordance with the time, price, and other terms and conditions of Contract Documents.
- b. On request, District will provide each Bidder access to the Site to conduct such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, and studies, as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of a Bid. Bidders must fill all holes and clean up and restore the Site to its former condition upon completion of its explorations, investigations, tests, and studies. Such investigations and Site examinations may be performed during any and all Site visits indicated in the Notice to Bidders and only under the provisions of the Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, proof of insurance and obligation to indemnify against claims arising from such work, and District's prior approval.
 - (1) Contractor to provide the District's Project Manager twenty-four (24) hours prior notice to site access.

DOCUMENT 00 31 32

GEOTECHNICAL DATA

1. Summary

This document describes geotechnical data at or near the Project that is in the District's possession available for Contractor's review, and use of data resulting from various investigations. This document is **not** part of the Contract Documents. See General Conditions for definition(s) of terms used herein.

2. Geotechnical Reports

- a. Geotechnical reports may have been prepared for and around the Site by soil investigation engineers hired by Sacramento City Unified School District ("District"), and its consultants, contractors, and tenants.
- b. Geotechnical reports may be inspected at the District Office or the Construction Manager's offices, if any, and copies may be obtained at cost of reproduction and handling upon Bidder's agreement to pay for such copies. These reports are **not** part of the Contract Documents.
 - (1) Contractor to provide the District's Project Manager and / or Construction Manager twenty-four (24) hours prior notice to review the documentation.
- c. The reports and drawings of physical conditions that may relate to the Project are the following:
 - (1) Pavement Improvement Recommendations from Wallace Kuhl & Associates dated 3/24/22

3. Use of Data

- a. Geotechnical data were obtained only for use of District and its architects and consultants for planning and design and are **not** a part of Contract Documents.
- b. Except as expressly set forth below, District does not warrant, and makes no representation regarding, the accuracy or thoroughness of any geotechnical data. Bidder represents and agrees that in submitting a Bid it is not relying on any geotechnical data supplied by District, except as specifically allowed below.
- c. Under no circumstances shall District be deemed to make a warranty or representation of existing above-ground conditions, as-built conditions, or other actual conditions verifiable by independent investigation. These conditions are verifiable by Contractor by the performance of its own independent investigation that Contractor should perform as a condition to bidding and Contractor must not and shall not rely on information supplied by District.

Limited Reliance Site that have been utilized by District in preparation of the Contract Documents.

Drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing subsurface structures (except underground facilities) that are at or contiguous to the Site and have been utilized by District in preparation of the Contract Documents.

- d. Bidder may rely upon the general accuracy of the "technical data" contained in the reports and drawings identified above, but only insofar as it relates to subsurface conditions, provided Bidder has conducted the independent investigation required pursuant to Instructions to Bidders, and discrepancies are not apparent. The term "technical data" in the referenced reports and drawings shall be limited as follows:
 - (1) The term "technical data" shall include actual reported depths, reported quantities, reported soil types, reported soil conditions, and reported material, equipment or structures that were encountered during subsurface exploration. The term "technical data" does not include, and Bidder may not rely upon, any other data, interpretations, opinions or information shown or indicated in such drawings or reports that otherwise relate to subsurface conditions or described structures.
 - (2) The term "technical data" shall not include the location of underground facilities.
 - (3) Bidder may not rely on the completeness of reports and drawings for the purposes of bidding or construction. Bidder may rely upon the general accuracy of the "technical data" contained in such reports or drawings.
 - (4) Bidder is solely responsible for any interpretation or conclusion drawn from any "technical data" or any other data, interpretations, opinions, or information provided in the identified reports and drawings.

4. Investigations/Site Examinations

- a. Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder is responsible for conducting or obtaining any additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface, and underground facilities) at or contiguous to the Site or otherwise, that may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of Work or that relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder and safety precautions and programs incident thereto or that Bidder deems necessary to determine its Bid for performing and furnishing the Work in accordance with the time, price, and other terms and conditions of Contract Documents.
- b. On request, District will provide each Bidder access to the Site to conduct such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, and studies, as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of a Bid. Bidders must fill all holes and clean up and restore the Site to its former condition upon completion of its explorations, investigations, tests, and studies. Such investigations and Site examinations may be performed during any and all Site visits indicated in the Notice to Bidders and only under the provisions of the Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, proof of insurance and obligation to indemnify against claims arising from such work, and District's prior approval.

DOCUMENT 00 41 13

BID FORM AND PROPOSAL

Sacramento City Unified School District ("District" or "Owner")

	
part of the Contra nd effect of any te and agrees to stri	website at act Documents. The erm or provision of these ctly abide by their edgement, the District
nd agrees and pro and equipment to Contract Documen	mitation, the Notice to poses to furnish all perform and furnish all ts, including, without
N PLAYGROUND	
	mount, all taxes e bidder will be based
Dollars	\$
Dollars	\$
Dollars	\$
<u>D</u> ollars	\$
	nd effect of any ter and agrees to strinitial this acknowled agrees and promote and equipment to contract Document 10-418 IN PLAYGROUND ag total lump sum ansible, responsiv Dollars Dollars Dollars

2.	<u>D</u> ollars	\$
Additive: ENGINEERED FILL PL	AN - SEE SHEET C1.2	
3. Additive: GRADING AND DRAI	<u>D</u> ollars	\$
Additive: GRADING AND DRAI		
4. Additive: PAVING AND STRIPI	<u>D</u> ollars	\$

Descriptions of alternates are primarily scope definitions and do not necessarily detail the full range of materials and processes needed to complete the construction.

6. **BID SUBMISSION**

Bids must be submitted electronically to E-Buildertm.

7. **ALLOWANCE**

The above allowance shall only be allocated for items relating to the Work. Contractor shall not bill for or be due any portion of this allowance unless the District has identified specific work, Contractor has submitted a price for that work or the District has proposed a price for that work, the District has accepted the cost for that work, and the District has prepared a change order incorporating that work. Contractor hereby authorizes the District to execute a unilateral deductive change order at or near the end of the Project for all or any portion of the allowance not allocated.

8. REVIEW OF WORK IN CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The undersigned has reviewed the Work outlined in the Contract Documents and fully understands the scope of Work required in this Proposal, understands the construction and project management function(s) is described in the Contract Documents, and that each Bidder who is awarded a contract shall be in fact a prime contractor, not a subcontractor, to the District, and agrees that its Proposal, if accepted by the District, will be the basis for the Bidder to enter into a contract with the District in accordance with the intent of the Contract Documents.

9. **DISCREPANCIES AND OMISSIONS**

The undersigned has reviewed the Work outlined in the Contract Documents and fully understands the scope of Work required in this Proposal, understands the construction and project management function(s) as described in the Contract Documents, and that each Bidder who is awarded a contract shall be in fact a prime contractor, not a subcontractor, to the District, and agrees that its Proposal, if accepted by the District, will be the basis for the Bidder to enter into a contract with the District in accordance with the intent of the Contract Documents.

The undersigned has notified the District in writing of any discrepancies or omissions or of any doubt, questions, or ambiguities about the meaning of any of the Contract Documents, and has contacted the Construction Manager or other official point of contact for the District before Bid date to verify the issuance of any clarifying Addenda.

10. WORK COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION

The undersigned agrees to commence work under this Contract on the date established in the Contract Documents and to complete all work within the time specified in the Contract Documents.

11. **LIQUIDATED DAMAGES**

The liquidated damages clause of the General Conditions and Agreement is hereby acknowledged.

12. **DISTRICT BID RIGHTS**

It is understood that the District reserves the right to reject this bid and that the bid shall remain open to acceptance and is irrevocable for a period of ninety (90) days.

13. **DOCUMENTS TO BE ATTACHED**

The following documents are attached hereto and hereby attests that all required provisions of said forms will be strictly adhered to:

- Bid Bond on the District's form or other security.
- Designated Subcontractors List.
- All other forms listed in the instructions to bidders

14. ACCEPTANCE OF ADDENDA

Acceptance of the following addenda is hereby acknowledged:

No, Dated	No, Dated	No, Dated

15. **REQUIRED LICENSE**

Bidder acknowledges that the license required for performance of the Work is a A.

16. **LABOR HARMONY**

The undersigned hereby certifies that Bidder is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed on the Work.

17. **BIDDER COMPETENCY**

Bidder specifically acknowledges and understands that if it is awarded the Contract, that it shall perform the Work of the Project while complying with all requirements of the Department of Industrial Relations and with all requirements of the Project Labor Agreement.

Bidder hereby certifies that its bid includes sufficient funds to permit Bidder to comply with all local, state or federal labor laws or regulations during the Project, including payment of prevailing wage, and that Bidder will comply with the provisions of Labor Code section 2810(d) if awarded the Contract.

Bidder represents that it is competent, knowledgeable, and has special skills with respect to the nature, extent, and inherent conditions of the Work to be performed. Bidder further acknowledges that there are certain peculiar and inherent conditions existent in the construction of the Work that may create, during the Work, unusual or peculiar unsafe conditions hazardous to persons and property.

Bidder expressly acknowledges that it is aware of such peculiar risks and that it has the skill and experience to foresee and to adopt protective measures to adequately and safely perform the Work with respect to such hazards.

18. **BIDDER RISKS**

Bidder expressly acknowledges that it is aware of such peculiar risks and that it has the skill and experience to foresee and to adopt protective measures to adequately and safely perform the Work with respect to such hazards.

19. FALSE CLAIMS

Bidder expressly acknowledges that it is aware that if a false claim is knowingly submitted (as the terms "claim" and "knowingly" are defined in the California False Claims Act, Cal. Gov. Code, §12650 et seq.), the District will be entitled to civil remedies set forth in the California False Claim Act. It may also be considered fraud and the Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution.

20. **BIDDER CERTIFICATION**

The undersigned Bidder certifies that it is, at the time of bidding, and shall be throughout the period of the contract, licensed by the State of California to do the type of work required under the terms of the Contract Documents and registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations. Bidder further certifies that it is regularly engaged in the general class and type of work called for in the Contract Documents.

Furthermore, Bidder hereby certifies to the District that all representations, certifications, and statements made by Bidder, as set forth in this bid form, are true and correct and are made under penalty of perjury.

Dated this	day of			_ 20
Name of Bidder				
Type of Organization				
Signed by				
Name and Title of Signer				
Address of Bidder				
Taxpayer's Identification No	o. of Bidder			
Telephone Number				
Fax Number				
E-mail		Web page		
Contractor's License No(s):	No.:	Class:	Expiration Date:	
	No.:	Class:	Expiration Date:	
	No.:	Class:	Expiration Date:	
Public Works Contractor Re	gistration No.: _			

BID BOND

Project: GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

(Note: If Bidder is providing a bid bond as its bid security, Bidder must use this form, NOT a surety company form.)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:		
That the undersigned,	, as Principal ("Principal"),	
and("Surety"), a corporation organized and existing under and by vi California and authorized to do business as a surety in the State bound unto the Sacramento City Unified School District ("District California, as Obligee, in an amount equal to ten percent (10%) the sum of	of California, are held and t") of SacramentoCounty, S	e of firmly State of
Dollars	s (\$)	
lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of made, we, and each of us, bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.		
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that whereas the District for all Work specifically described in the accompanying ("Project" or "Contract").		

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal is awarded the Contract and, within the time and manner required under the Contract Documents, after the prescribed forms are presented to Principal for signature, enters into a written contract, in the prescribed form in accordance with the bid, and files two bonds, one guaranteeing faithful performance and the other guaranteeing payment for labor and materials as required by law, and meets all other conditions to the Contract between the Principal and the Obligee becoming effective, or if the Principal shall fully reimburse and save harmless the Obligee from any damage sustained by the Obligee through failure of the Principal to enter into the written contract and to file the required performance and labor and material bonds, and to meet all other conditions to the Contract between the Principal and the Obligee becoming effective, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and effect. The full payment of the sum stated above shall be due immediately if Principal fails to execute the Contract within seven (7) days of the date of the District's Notice of Award to Principal.

Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or the call for bids, or to the work to be performed thereunder, or the specifications accompanying the same, shall in any way affect its obligation under this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or the call for bids, or to the work, or to the specifications. In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the Obligee and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs incurred by the Obligee in such suit, including a reasonable attorneys' fee to be fixed by the Court.

If the District awards the bid, the security of unsuccessful bidder(s) shall be returned within sixty (60) days from the time the award is made. Unless otherwise required by law, no bidder may withdraw its bid for ninety (90) days after the date of the bid opening.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, th	is instrument l	nas been duty executed by the Principal and Surety above
named, on the	day of	, 20
		Principal
		Ву
		Surety
		Ву
		Name of California Agent of Surety
		Address of California Agent of Surety
		Telephone Number of California Agent of Surety

Bidder must attach Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety and a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted Surety Insurer.

DOCUMENT 00 43 36

DESIGNATED SUBCONTRACTORS LIST

(TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID)

PROJECT: GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that it must clearly set forth below the name, location and California contractor license number of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the Bidder in or about the construction of the Work or who will specially fabricate and install a portion of the Work according to detailed drawings contained in the plans and specifications in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of Bidder's total Base Bid and the kind of Work that each will perform. Vendors or suppliers of materials only do not need to be listed.

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that, if Bidder fails to list as to any portion of Work, or if Bidder lists more than one subcontractor to perform the same portion of Work, Bidder must perform that portion itself or be subjected to penalty under applicable law. In case more than one subcontractor is named for the same kind of Work, state the portion of the kind of Work that each subcontractor will perform.

If alternate bid(s) is/are called for and Bidder intends to use subcontractors different from or in addition to those subcontractors listed for work under the Base Bid, Bidder must list subcontractors that will perform Work in an amount in excess of one half of one percent (0.5%) of Bidder's total Base Bid plus alternate(s).

If further space is required for the list of proposed subcontractors, attach additional copies of page 2 showing the required information, as indicated below.

Subcontractor Name:	
	Location:
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	

Subcontractor Name:		
CA Cont. Lic. #: _	Location:	
DIR Registration #:		
Portion of Work:		
Subcontractor Name:		
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:	
DIR Registration #:		
Portion of Work:		
Subcontractor Name:		
CA Cont. Lic. #: _	Location:	
DIR Registration #:		
Portion of Work:		
Subcontractor Name:		
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:	
DIR Registration #:		
Portion of Work:		
Subcontractor Name:		
CA Cont. Lic. #: _	Location:	
DIR Registration #:		
Portion of Work:		
Date:		
Proper Name of Bidder:		
Signature:		
Print Name:		
Title:		

DOCUMENT 00 45 01

SITE VISIT CERTIFICATION

(TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID)

IF SITE VISIT WAS MANDATORY

PROJECT: GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

Check ontion that applies:

Check option that	applies.	
conditions relating to cons	eed the Site of the proposed Work and became fully acquain struction and labor. I fully understand the facilities, difficul execution of the Work under contract.	
	(Bidder's representative) visited to the fully acquainted with the conditions relating to constructive fully understood the facilities, difficulties, and restriction der contract.	
Construction Manager, an any damage, or omissions	ne Sacramento City Unified School District, its Architect, its d all of their respective officers, agents, employees, and cos, related to conditions that could have been identified duri sentative's visit to the Site.	nsultants from
I certify under penalty of and correct.	perjury under the laws of the State of California that the fo	regoing is true
Date:		
Proper Name of Bidder:		
Signature:		
Print Name:		
Title:		

DOCUMENT 00 45 19

NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION Public Contract Code Section 7106

Public Contract Code Section 7106
(TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID)

PROJECT: GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

The undersigned declares	;:	
I am the	of	, the party making the foregoing bid.
company, association, org The Bidder has not directly sham Bid. The Bidder has Bidder or anyone else to per manner, directly or indirectly or	ganization, or corporally or indirectly induced not directly or indirectly or indirectly induced not directly or indirectly, sought by agreed der or any other Bidder. A ctly, submitted his or ged information or daganization, bid deposed has not paid, and sedeclaration on behaltomany, limited liability wer to execute, and of the source of the sedeclaration on behaltomany, limited liability.	chalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, ation. The Bid is genuine and not collusive or sham. It does not consider the put in a false or colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any to refrain from bidding. The Bidder has not in any ment, communication, or conference with anyone to der, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of I statements contained in the Bid are true. The Bidder her Bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the state relative thereto, to any corporation, partnership, story, or to any member or agent thereof, to effectuate will not pay, any person or entity for such purpose. If of a Bidder that is a corporation, partnership, joint lity partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents does execute, this declaration on behalf of the Bidder. ws of the State of California that the foregoing is true
and correct and that this	declaration is execute	ed on[date], at
	[city], Cal	ifornia.
Date:		
Proper Name of Bidder:		
Signature:		
Print Name:		
Title:	,	
	FND (DE DOCUMENT

DOCUMENT 00 45 19.01

IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION (Public contract code sections 2202-2208)

(Public contract code sections 2202-2208)
(TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID IF BID EXCEEDS \$1,000,000)

School	CT/CONTRACT NO.: 0350-418, Genevieve Didion District ("District") andder") ("Contract" or "Project").	Playground between Sacramento City ("Contra	
	b bidding on or submitting a proposal for a contra the bidder/proposer must submit this certification		
1, chec the cor	dder/proposer must complete ONLY ONE of the fact the corresponding box and complete the certific responding box, complete the certification below, emption approval.	cation below. To complete OPTION 2,	check
	OPTION 1. Bidder/Proposer is not on the curre activities in Iran created by the California Depart to Public Contract Code section 2203(b), and we twenty million dollars (\$20,000,000) or more in comore, if that other person will use the credit to p in Iran and is identified on the current list of person by DGS.	ment of General Services ("DGS") pur are not a financial institution extendin credit to another person, for 45 days of rovide goods or services in the energy	suant ig or sector
	OPTION 2. Bidder/Proposer has received a write requirement pursuant to Public Contract Code se documentation demonstrating the exemption approximation app	ctions 2203(c) and (d). A copy of the	
<u>CERTI</u>	FICATION:		
legally	official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY O bind the bidder/proposer to the OPTION selected the State of California.		
Vendo	or Name/Financial Institution (Printed)	Federal ID Number (or n/a)	
By (A	uthorized Signature)		
Printe	ed Name and Title of Person Signing	Date Executed	

(POST AWARD DOCUMENTS FOR REFERENCE ONLY - DO NOT SUBMIT WITH BID)

DOCUMENT 00 52 13

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE AND ENTERED INTO THIS	S DAY OF	, 20	
by and between the Sacramento City Unified School D	District ("District") and		
("0	Contractor") ("Agreement").		
·	, , -		

WITNESSETH: That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these presents do covenant and agree with each other, as follows:

21. **The Work**: Contractor agrees to furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner, the work of the following project:

PROJECT: GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

("Project" or "Contract" or "Work")

It is understood and agreed that the Work shall be performed and completed as required in the Contract Documents including, without limitation, the Drawings and Specifications and submission of all documents required to secure funding or by the Division of the State Architect for close-out of the Project, under the direction and supervision of, and subject to the approval of, the District or its authorized representative.

- 22. **The Contract Documents**: The complete Contract consists of all Contract Documents as defined in the General Conditions and incorporated herein by this reference. Any and all obligations of the District and Contractor are fully set forth and described in the Contract Documents. All Contract Documents are intended to cooperate so that any Work called for in one and not mentioned in the other or vice versa is to be executed the same as if mentioned in all Contract Documents.
- 23. **Interpretation of Contract Documents**: Should any question arise concerning the intent or meaning of Contract Documents, including the Drawings or Specifications, the question shall be submitted to the District for interpretation. If a conflict exists in the Contract Documents, modifications, beginning with the most recent, shall control over this Agreement (if any), which shall control over the Special Conditions, which shall control over any Supplemental Conditions, which shall control over the General Conditions, which shall control over the remaining Division 0 documents, which shall control over Division 1 Documents which shall control over Division 2 through Division 33 documents, which shall control over figured dimensions, which shall control over large-scale drawings, which shall control over small-scale drawings. In no case shall a document calling for lower quality and/or quantity material or workmanship control. The decision of the District in the matter shall be final.
- 24. **Time for Completion**: It is hereby understood and agreed that the work under this contract shall be completed within <u>sixty</u> (<u>60</u>) consecutive calendar days ("Contract Time") from the date specified in the District's Notice to Proceed.

It is understood and agreed that the Work shall be performed and completed as required in the Contract Documents (as defined herein) including, without limitation, the Drawings and Specifications and submission of all documents required to secure funding or by the Division of the State Architect ("DSA") for close-out of the Project, under the direction and supervision of, and subject to the approval of, the District or its authorized representative.

- 25. Completion-Extension of Time: Should the Contractor fail to complete this Contract, and the Work provided herein, within the time fixed for completion, due allowance being made for the contingencies provided for herein, the Contractor shall become liable to the District for all loss and damage that the District may suffer on account thereof. The Contractor shall coordinate its work with the Work of all other contractors. The District shall not be liable for delays resulting from Contractor's failure to coordinate its Work with other contractors in a manner that will allow timely completion of Contractor's Work. Contractor shall be liable for delays to other contractors caused by Contractor's failure to coordinate its Work with the work of other contractors.
- 26. **Liquidated Damages**: Contractor agrees that if the Work is not completed within the Contract Time and/or pursuant to the completion schedule, construction schedule, or project milestones developed pursuant to provisions of the Contract, it is understood, acknowledged, and agreed that the District will suffer damage which is not capable of being calculated. Pursuant to Government Code section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to the District, as fixed and liquidated damages for these incalculable damages, the sum of One Thousand (\$1,000) per day for each and every calendar day of delay beyond the Contract Time or beyond any completion schedule, construction schedule, or project milestones established pursuant to the Contract.
- 27. **Loss Or Damage**: The District and its authorized representatives shall not in any way or manner be answerable or suffer loss, damage, expense, or liability for any loss or damage that may happen to the Work, or any part thereof, or in or about the same during its construction and before acceptance, and the Contractor shall assume all liabilities of every kind or nature arising from the Work, either by accident, negligence, theft, vandalism, or any cause whatever; and shall hold the District and its authorized representatives harmless from all liability of every kind and nature arising from accident, negligence, or any cause whatever.
- 28. **Insurance and Bonds**: Before commencing the Work, Contractor shall provide all required certificates of insurance, and payment and performance bonds as evidence thereof.
- 29. **Prosecution of Work**: If the Contractor should neglect to prosecute the Work properly or fail to perform any provisions of this contract, the District, may, pursuant to the General Conditions and without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment then or thereafter due the Contractor.
- 30. **Authority of Architect, Project Inspector, and DSA**: Contractor hereby acknowledges that the Architect(s), the Project Inspector(s), and the Division of the State Architect have authority to approve and/or stop Work if the Contractor's Work does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, and all applicable laws. The Contractor shall be liable for any delay caused by its non-compliant Work.
- 31. **Assignment of Contract**: Neither the Contract, nor any part thereof, nor any moneys due or to become due thereunder, may be assigned by the Contractor without the written approval of the District, nor without the written consent of the Surety on the Contractor's Performance Bond (the "Surety"), unless the Surety has waived in writing its right to notice of assignment.
- 32. **Classification of Contractor's License**: Contractor hereby acknowledges that it currently holds valid Type <u>A</u> Contractor's license(s) issued by the State of California, Contractor's State Licensing Board, in accordance with division 3, chapter 9, of the Business and Professions Code and in the classification called for in the Contract Documents.

- 33. **Registration as Public Works Contractor**: The Contractor and all Subcontractors currently are registered as public works contractors with the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, in accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4.
- 34. **Payment of Prevailing Wages**: The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall pay all workers on all Work performed pursuant to this Contract not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, for the type of work performed and the locality in which the work is to be performed within the boundaries of the District, pursuant to sections 1770 et seg. of the California Labor Code.
- 35. This Project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. Contractor specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Work of this Agreement while complying with all the applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code, including, without limitation, the requirement that the Contractor and all of its Subcontractors shall timely submit complete and accurate electronic certified payroll records as required by the Contract Documents, or the District may not issue payment.
- 36. **Contract Price**: In consideration of the foregoing covenants, promises, and agreements on the part of the Contractor, and the strict and literal fulfillment of each and every covenant, promise, and agreement, and as compensation agreed upon for the Work and construction, erection, and completion as aforesaid, the District covenants, promises, and agrees that it will pay and cause to be paid to the Contractor in full, and as the full Contract Price and compensation for construction, erection, and completion of the Work hereinabove agreed to be performed by the Contractor, the following price:

Dol	la	rs
-----	----	----

(\$),

in lawful money of the United States, which sum is to be paid according to the schedule provided by the Contractor and accepted by the District and subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract. This amount supersedes any previously stated and/or agreed to amount(s).

37. **Notices**: Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall be deemed to have been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by overnight delivery service, or facsimile or email, addressed as follows:

Sacramento City Unified School District ATTN: Contracts Office 5735 47th Avenue Sacramento, CA 95824 Email: Tina-Alvarez-Bevens@scusd.edu Contractor Name: ATTN: [ADDRESS] [FAX] [EMAIL]

Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile or email shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery to the overnight delivery service. Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail.

38. **Severability**: If any term, covenant, condition, or provision in any of the Contract Documents is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions in the Contract Documents shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, accepted and agreed on the date indicated above:

CONTRACTOR	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ву:	By: Rose Ramos
Title:	Title: Chief Business Officer

NOTE: If the party executing this Contract is a corporation, a certified copy of the by-laws, or of the resolution of the Board of Directors, authorizing the officers of said corporation to execute the Contract and the bonds required thereby must be attached hereto.

DOCUMENT 00 61 13.13

PERFORMANCE BOND (100% of Contract Price)

(Note: Bidders must use this form, NOT a surety company form.)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:
WHEREAS, the Governing Board ("Board") of the Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and ("Principal") have entered into a contract ("Agreement") for the furnishing of all materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform the following project:
(Project Name)
("Project") which Agreement dated, 20, and all of the Contract Documents attached to or forming a part of the Agreement, are hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and
WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of the Agreement to furnish a bond for the faithful performance of the Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and
("Surety") are held and
firmly bound unto the Board of the District in the penal sum of
Dollars (\$), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents, to:

- Perform all the work required to complete the Project; and
- Pay to the District all damages the District incurs as a result of the Principal's failure to perform all the Work required to complete the Project.

The condition of the obligation is such that, if the above bounden Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the Agreement and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the intent and meaning, including all contractual guarantees and warrantees of materials and workmanship, and shall indemnify and save harmless the District, its trustees, officers and agents, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.

Surety expressly agrees that the District may reject any contractor or subcontractor proposed by Surety to fulfill its obligations in the event of default by the Principal. Surety shall not utilize Principal in completing the Work nor shall Surety accept a Bid from Principal for completion of the Work if the District declares the Principal to be in default and notifies Surety of the District's objection to Principal's further participation in the completion of the Work.

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Agreement, the above obligation shall hold good for a period equal to the warranty and/or guarantee period of the Agreement, during which time Surety's obligation shall continue if Contractor shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory repair and replacements and totally protect the District from loss or damage resulting from or caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship. The obligations of Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any obligation of Contractor remains. Nothing herein shall limit the District's rights or the Contractor or Surety's obligations under the Agreement, law or equity, including, but not limited to, California Code of Civil Procedure section 337.15.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Agreement or to the Work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Agreement or to the work or to the specifications.

	interparts of this instrument, each of which shall for all e been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above, 20
(Affix Corporate Seal)	
	Principal
	Ву
	Surety
	Ву
	Name of California Agent of Surety
	Address of California Agent of Surety
	Telephone No. of California Agent of Surety

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer.

DOCUMENT 00 61 13.16

PAYMENT BOND Contractor's Labor & Material Bond (100% Of Contract Price)

(Note: Bidders must use this form, NOT a surety company form.)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:
WHEREAS, the Governing Board ("Board") of the Sacramento City Unified School District (or "District") and, ("Principal") have entered into a contract ("Agreement") for the furnishing of all materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform the following project:
transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform the following project.
which Agreement dated, 20, and all of the Contract Documents attached to or forming a part of the Agreement, are hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to law and the Contract, the Principal is required, before entering upon the performance of the Work, to file a good and sufficient bond with the body by which the Agreement is awarded in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract price, to secure the claims to which reference is made in sections 9000 through 9510 and 9550 through 9566 of the Civicode, and division 2, part 7, of the Labor Code.
NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and
("Surety") are held and
firmly bound unto all laborers, material men, and other persons referred to in said statutes in the sum of Dollars (\$
), lawful money of the United States, being a sum not less than the total amount payable by the terms of Contract, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, jointly and severally, by these presents
The condition of this obligation is that if the Principal or any of his or its subcontractors, of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns of any, all, or either of them shall fail to pay for any labor, materials, provisions, provender, or other supplies, used in, upon, for or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for

executors, administrators, successors, or assigns of any, all, or either of them shall fail to pay for any labor, materials, provisions, provender, or other supplies, used in, upon, for or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the Principal or any of his or its subcontractors of any tier under Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work or labor, that the Surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount herein above set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay a reasonable attorney's fee to be awarded and fixed by the Court, and to be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered.

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under section 9100 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and affect.

And the Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of Agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension, alteration, or addition.

	terparts of this instrument, each of which shall for all been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above, 20
(Affix Corporate Seal)	
	Principal
·	Ву
	Surety
·	Ву
	Name of California Agent of Surety
	Address of California Agent of Surety
<u> </u>	Telephone No. of California Agent of Surety

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer.

DOCUMENT 00 45 26

WORKERS' COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: 0350-418, Genevieve Didion Playground between
Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and
("Contractor" or "Bidder") ("Contract" or "Project").
Labor Code section 3700, in relevant part, provides:

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more of the following ways:

- a. By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more insurers duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this state; and/or
- b. By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-insure, which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees.

I am aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the Work of this Contract.

Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

(In accordance with Labor Code sections 1860 and 1861, the above certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any Work under this Contract.)

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.01

PREVAILING WAGE AND RELATED LABOR REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION

	50-418, Genevieve Didion Playground between	
Sacramento City Unified Scho		
("Coi	ntractor" or "Bidder") ("Contract" or "Project").	
regarding prevailing wages, apprentice and trainee employ	onform to the State of California Public Works Cont benefits, on-site audits with 48-hours' notice, pay yment requirements, for all Work on the above Project nonitoring and enforcement by the Department of Ind	yroll records, and including, without
Date:		
Proper Name of Contractor:		
Signature:		
Print Name:		
Title:		

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.03

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: 0350-418, Genevieve Didion Playground between Saci	ramento City Unifie
School District ("District") and	("Contractor"
or "Bidder") ("Contract" or "Project").	•

This Drug-Free Workplace Certification form is required from the successful Bidder pursuant to Government Code section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990. The Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 requires that every person or organization awarded a contract or grant for the procurement of any property or service from any state agency must certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing certain specified acts. In addition, the Act provides that each contract or grant awarded by a state agency may be subject to suspension of payments or termination of the contract or grant, and the contractor or grantee may be subject to debarment from future contracting, if the contracting agency determines that specified acts have occurred.

The District is not a "state agency" as defined in the applicable section(s) of the Government Code, but the District is a local agency and public school district under California law and requires all contractors on District projects to comply with the provisions and requirements of Government Code section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990.

Contractor must also comply with the provisions of Health & Safety Code section 11362.3 which prohibits the consumption or possession of cannabis or cannabis products in any public place, including school grounds, and specifically on school grounds while children are present.

Contractor shall certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all of the following:

- a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person's or organization's workplace and specifying actions which will be taken against employees for violations of the prohibition.
- b. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following:
 - (1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
 - (2) The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
 - (3) The availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee-assistance programs.
 - (4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- c. Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or grant be given a copy of the statement required above, and that, as a condition of employment on the contract or grant, the employee agrees to abide by the terms of the statement.

I, the undersigned, agree to fulfill the terms and requirements of Government Code section 8355 listed above and will publish a statement notifying employees concerning (a) the prohibition of controlled substance at the workplace, (b) establishing a drug-free awareness program, and (c) requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the Contract be given a copy of the statement required by section 8355(a), and requiring that the employee agree to abide by the terms of that statement.

I also understand that if the District determines that I have either (a) made a false certification herein, or (b) violated this certification by failing to carry out the requirements of section 8355, that the Contract awarded herein is subject to termination, suspension of payments, or both. I further understand that, should I violate the terms of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990, I may be subject to debarment in accordance with the requirements of the aforementioned Act.

I acknowledge that I am aware of the provisions of Government Code section 8350 et seq. and hereby certify that I will adhere to the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and Health and Safety Code section 11362.3.

Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.04

TOBACCO-FREE ENVIRONMENT CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: 03 School District ("District") and or "Bidder") ("Contract" or "P		mento City Unified ("Contractor"
This Tobacco-Free Environme	ent Certification form is required from the successful Bi	dder.
Safety Code section 104350 e Board Policies, all District site and the use of tobacco product includes school buildings, sch on District property. The pro- that creates an aerosol or vap for the purpose of circumven section 11362.3 prohibits the smoking tobacco is prohibited. I acknowledge that I am awa	on, 20 U.S.C. section 6083, Labor Code section 6400 et seq., Business and Professions Code section 22950 ees, including the Project site, are tobacco-free environts by all persons is prohibited on or in District property tool grounds, school owned vehicles and vehicles owner or in any manner or in any form, and the use of any of ting the prohibition of tobacco smoking. Further, Head es smoking or use of cannabis or cannabis products in the district's policy regarding tobacco-free environce of the District of the Di	et seq. and District nments. Smoking . District property ed by others while ic smoking device ral smoking device alth & Safety Code an any place where
that policy and not permit an	y of my firm's employees, agents, subcontractors, or r agents to use tobacco and/or smoke on the Project si	ny firm's
Date:		
Proper Name of Contractor:		
Signature:		
Print Name:		

END OF DOCUMENT

Title:

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.05

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: 0350-418, Genevieve Didion Playground between Sacrame	ento City	Unified
School District ("District") and	("Contra	ctor"
or "Bidder") ("Contract" or "Project").	- `	

- 39. Contractor hereby certifies that no Asbestos, or Asbestos-Containing Materials, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any material listed by the federal or state Environmental Protection Agency or federal or state health agencies as a hazardous material, or any other material defined as being hazardous under federal or state laws, rules, or regulations ("New Hazardous Material"), shall be furnished, installed, or incorporated in any way into the Project or in any tools, devices, clothing, or equipment used to affect any portion of Contractor's work on the Project for District.
- 40. Contractor further certifies that it has instructed its employees with respect to the above-mentioned standards, hazards, risks, and liabilities.
- 41. Asbestos and/or asbestos-containing material shall be defined as all items containing but not limited to chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, and actinolite. Any or all material containing greater than one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) asbestos shall be defined as asbestos-containing material.
- 42. Any disputes involving the question of whether or not material is New Hazardous Material shall be settled by electronic microscopy or other appropriate and recognized testing procedure, at the District's determination. The costs of any such tests shall be paid by Contractor if the material is found to be New Hazardous Material.
- 43. All Work or materials found to be New Hazardous Material or Work or material installed with equipment containing "New Hazardous Material" will be immediately rejected and this Work will be removed at Contractor's expense at no additional cost to the District.
- 44. Contractor has read and understood the document Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements, and shall comply with all the provisions outlined therein.

Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.06

LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: 0350-418, Genevieve Didion Playground between Sacramer	nto City Unifie	b
School District ("District") and	("Contractor"	
or "Bidder") ("Contract" or "Project").	•	

This certification provides notice to the Contractor that:

- (1) Contractor's work may disturb lead-containing building materials.
- (2) Contractor shall notify the District if any work may result in the disturbance of lead-containing building materials.
- (3) Contractor shall comply with the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, if lead-based paint is disturbed in a six-square-foot or greater area indoors or a 20-square-foot or greater area outdoors.

45. Lead as a Health Hazard

Lead poisoning is recognized as a serious environmental health hazard facing children today. Even at low levels of exposure, much lower than previously believed, lead can impair the development of a child's central nervous system, causing learning disabilities, and leading to serious behavioral problems. Lead enters the environment as tiny lead particles and lead dust disburses when paint chips, chalks, peels, wears away over time, or is otherwise disturbed. Ingestion of lead dust is the most common pathway of childhood poisoning; lead dust gets on a child's hands and toys and then into a child's mouth through common hand-to-mouth activity. Exposures may result from construction or remodeling activities that disturb lead paint, from ordinary wear and tear of windows and doors, or from friction on other surfaces.

Ordinary construction and renovation or repainting activities carried out without lead-safe work practices can disturb lead-based paint and create significant hazards. Improper removal practices, such as dry scraping, sanding, or water blasting painted surfaces, are likely to generate high volumes of lead dust.

Because the Contractor and its employees will be providing services for the District, and because the Contractor's work may disturb lead-containing building materials, CONTRACTOR IS HEREBY NOTIFIED of the potential presence of lead-containing materials located within certain buildings utilized by the District. All school buildings built prior to 1978 are presumed to contain some lead-based paint until sampling proves otherwise. Overview of California Law

46. **Overview of California Law**

Education Code section 32240 et seq. is known as the Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act. Under this act, the Department of Health Services is to conduct a sample survey of schools in the State of California for the purpose of developing risk factors to predict lead contamination in public schools. (Ed. Code, § 32241.)

Any school that undertakes any action to abate existing risk factors for lead is required to utilize trained and state-certified contractors, inspectors, and workers. (Ed. Code, § 32243, subd. (b).) Moreover, lead-based paint, lead plumbing, and solders, or other potential

sources of lead contamination, shall not be utilized in the construction of any new school facility or the modernization or renovation of any existing school facility. (Ed. Code, § 32244.)

Both the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("Fed/OSHA") and the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health ("Cal/OSHA") have implemented safety orders applicable to all construction work where a contractor's employee may be occupationally exposed to lead.

The OSHA Regulations apply to all construction work where a contractor's employee may be occupationally exposed to lead. The OSHA Regulations contain specific and detailed requirements imposed on contractors subject to that regulation. The OSHA Regulations define construction work as work for construction, alteration, and/or repair, including painting and decorating. It includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- a. Demolition or salvage of structures where lead or materials containing lead are present;
- b. Removal or encapsulation of materials containing lead;
- c. New construction, alteration, repair, or renovation of structures, substrates, or portions thereof, that contain lead, or materials containing lead;
- d. Installation of products containing lead;
- e. Lead contamination/emergency cleanup;
- f. Transportation, disposal, storage, or containment of lead or materials containing lead on the site or location at which construction activities are performed;
- g. Maintenance operations associated with the construction activities described in the subsection.

Because it is assumed by the District that all painted surfaces (interior as well as exterior) within the District contain some level of lead, it is imperative that the Contractor, its workers and subcontractors fully and adequately comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations governing lead-based materials (including title 8, California Code of Regulations, section 1532.1).

Contractor shall notify the District if any Work may result in the disturbance of lead-containing building materials. Any and all Work that may result in the disturbance of lead-containing building materials shall be coordinated through the District. A signed copy of this Certification shall be on file prior to beginning Work on the Project, along with all current insurance certificates.

47. Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, Section 402(c)(3) of the Toxic Substances Control Act

The EPA requires lead safe work practices to reduce exposure to lead hazards created by renovation, repair and painting activities that disturb lead-based paint. Pursuant to the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule (RRP), renovations in homes, childcare facilities, and schools built prior to 1978 must be conducted by certified renovations firms, using renovators with training by a EPA-accredited training provider, and fully and adequately complying with all applicable laws, rules and regulations governing lead-based materials, including those rules and regulations appearing within title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations as part 745 (40 CFR 745).

The RRP requirements apply to all contractors who disturb lead-based paint in a six-square-foot or greater area indoors or a 20-square-foot or greater area outdoors. If a DPH-certified inspector or risk assessor determines that a home constructed before 1978 is lead-free, the federal certification is not required for anyone working on that particular building.

48. **Contractor's Liability**

If the Contractor fails to comply with any applicable laws, rules, or regulations, and that failure results in a site or worker contamination, the Contractor will be held solely responsible for all costs involved in any required corrective actions, and shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of the Contract, for all damages and other claims arising therefrom.

If lead disturbance is anticipated in the Work, only persons with appropriate accreditation, registrations, licenses, and training shall conduct this Work.

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to properly dispose of any and all waste products, including, but not limited to, paint chips, any collected residue, or any other visual material that may occur from the prepping of any painted surface. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide the proper disposal of any hazardous waste by a certified hazardous waste hauler. This company shall be registered with the Department of Transportation (DOT) and shall be able to issue a current manifest number upon transporting any hazardous material from any school site within the District.

The Contractor shall provide the District with any sample results prior to beginning Work, during the Work, and after the completion of the Work. The District may request to examine, prior to the commencement of the Work, the lead training records of each employee of the Contractor.

THE CONTRACTOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT IT:

- HAS RECEIVED NOTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL LEAD-BASED MATERIALS ON THE OWNER'S PROPERTY;
- 2. IS KNOWLEDGEABLE REGARDING AND WILL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING WORK WITH, AND DISPOSAL, OF LEAD.

THE UNDERSIGNED WARRANTS THAT HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN ON BEHALF OF AND BIND THE CONTRACTOR. THE DISTRICT MAY REQUIRE PROOF OF SUCH AUTHORITY.

Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	
	END OF DOCUMENT

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.07

IMPORTED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION

School District (RACT NO.: 0350-418, Geneviev "District") and ontract" or "Project").		ınd between Sacramer ———	
soils, aggregate of any environm California Environd all requirem Phase I environi	pe executed by all entities that, or related materials ("Fill") to tental review of the Project performental Quality Act, section 2 tents of section 17210 et seq. of mental assessment acceptable to of Toxic Substances Control.	the Project Site. formed pursuant t 1000 et seq. of th of the Education C	All Fill shall satisfy all to the statutes and gui e Public Resources Co tode, including require	requirements delines of the de ("CEQA"), ments for a
Certification of:	Delivery Firm/TransporterWholesalerDistributor	□ Broker	□ Manufacturer □ Retailer	
Type of Entity	□ Corporation□ Limited Partnership□ Sole Proprietorship	□ General Partn□ Limited Liabil□ Other		
Name of firm ("I	Firm"):			
Mailing address:				
Addresses of bra	anch office used for this Project	:		
If subsidiary, na	me and address of parent com	pany:		
Code and the se certify on behalf and/or supplied are free of any a	e below, I hereby certify that I a ections referenced therein regar f of the Firm that all soils, aggre or that will be provided, delive and all hazardous material as d certify that I am authorized to	ding the definition egates, or related red, and/or suppli efined in section 2	n of hazardous materia materials provided, de led by this Firm to the 25260 of the Health ar	al. I further elivered, Project Site nd Safety
Date:				
Proper Name of	Firm:			
Signature:				
Print Name:				
Title:				

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.08

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION, FINGERPRINTING CERTIFICATION and DISTRICT IDENTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: 0350-418, Genevieve Didion Playground between Sacramento City Unified

	hool District ("District") and ("Contractor"
or	"Bidder") ("Contract" or "Project").
cu	e undersigned does hereby certify to the District that I am a representative of the Contractor rrently under contract with the District; that I am familiar with the facts herein certified; and that n authorized and qualified to execute this certificate on behalf of Contractor.
Со	ntractor certifies that it has taken at least one of the following actions (check all that apply):
	Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), Contractor has installed or will install, prior to commencement of Work, a physical barrier at the Work Site, that will limit contact betwee Contractor's employees, Subcontractors or suppliers and District pupils at all times; and/or
	Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), Contractor certifies that all employees will be under the continual supervision of, and monitored by, an employee of the Contractor who the California Department of Justice ("DOJ") has ascertained, or as described below, will ascertain, has not been convicted of a violent or serious felony. The name and title of the employee who will be supervising Contractor's and its subcontractors' or suppliers' employees is:
	Name:
	Title:
	NOTE : If Contractor is a sole proprietor, and elects the above option, Contractor must have the above-name employee's fingerprints prepared and submitted by District for submission to the DOJ, in accordance wit Education Code section 45125.1(h). No work shall commence until such determination by DOJ has bee made.
	Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), the District will take appropriate steps to protect the safety of any pupils that may come in contact with Contractor's employees, subcontractors of suppliers so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply to Contractor under the Contract.
	The Work on the Contract is either (i) at an unoccupied school site and no employee of Contract and/or subcontractor or supplier of any tier of the Contract shall come in contact with the District pupils or (ii) if Contractor's employees or any subcontractor or supplier of any tier of the Contract interacts with pupils, outside of the immediate supervision and control of the pupil's parent of guardian or a school employee, the District will take appropriate steps to protect the safety of an pupils that may come in contact with Contractor's employees, subcontractors or suppliers so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 shall not apply to Contractor under the Contract.
	The Contractor, who is not a sole proprietor, has complied with the fingerprinting requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 with respect to all Contractor's employees and all of it Subcontractors' employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and the DOJ has determined (A) that none of those employees has been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1 and/of (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an employee as provided by Education Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). When the Contractor performs the criminal background check, it shall

immediately provide any subsequent arrest and conviction information it receives to the District pursuant to the subsequent arrest service. No work shall commence until the Department of Justice ascertains that Contractor's employees and any subcontractors' employees have not been convicted of a felony as defined in Government Code Section 45122.1.

A complete and accurate list of Contractor's employees and of all of its subcontractors' employees who may come in contact with District pupils during the course and scope of the Contract is attached hereto as ATTACHMENT "A;" and/or

□ The Contractor is a sole proprietor and intends to comply with the fingerprinting requirements of Education Code section 45125.1(h) with respect to all Contractor's employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and hereby agrees to the District's preparation and submission of fingerprints such that the DOJ may determine (A) that none of those employees has been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1 and/or (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an employee as provided by Education Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). No work shall commence until the Department of Justice ascertains that Contractor's employees and any subcontractors' employees have not been convicted of a felony as defined in Government Code Section 45122.1.

Contractor's responsibility for background clearance extends to all of its employees, Subcontractors or suppliers, and employees of Subcontractors or suppliers coming into contact with District pupils regardless of whether they are designated as employees or acting as independent contractors of the Contractor.

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]

ATTACHMENT "A"

List of Employees/Subcontractors

Name/Company:	
Name/Company:	
If further space is required for the list of employees/subcontractors, attach additional copie page.	s of this
Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.13

ATTACHMENT "A" PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

Project: 0350-418, GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

- It is a Contractor as that term is defined in Section 1.7 of the Sacramento City Unified School District Project Labor Agreement ("Agreement") because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work (as defined in Section 2.3) on the Project (as defined in Section 1.9), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.
- 2. In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.
- 3. If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned.
- 4. It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
- 5. It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this document, from any Contractor(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work, and it will provide a copy of such executed Agreement to be Bound to the Sacramento-Sierra Building & Construction Trades Council within fifteen (15) days of such contracting or subcontracting in accordance with Section 3.2 of the Agreement.

Dated:	
	Company Name
	Signature
	Printed Name & Title of Authorized Signer
	Address

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.14

PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT AGREEMENT OF SUBCONTRACTOR

Project: 0350-418, GENEVIEVE DIDION PLAYGROUND

AGREEMENT OF SUBCONTRACTOR

I, hy affixing my signature hereto, understand that	эt
with this Project Labor Agreement establishes a Construction Technology Academy ("Academy")	to
provide construction career training opportunities for District students. In order to support these	e
objectives of the Project Labor Agreement, I agree:	

- 1) To contact and provide the following information to the District or any Project Manager designated by the District or to the General Contractor, as determined by the District ("Project Manager"):
 - a. All apprentice level job openings on the Project, including:
 - i. description of the job, including the trade;
 - ii. specific qualifications, skills, and any other job requirements;
 - iii. name and telephone number of the person at my business who will be responsible for answering questions regarding the job opening; and
 - iv. description of how applicants should apply for the job.

The information described above shall be provided to Project Manager no later than when my business sends a job order to the appropriate building and construction trades unions for the job opening.

- 2) To work cooperatively with the Project Manager and make good faith efforts to employ qualified individuals referred by the Project Manager. "Good faith efforts" as it applies to this Project shall mean:
 - a. To offer the Project Manager the first opportunity to provide qualified individuals for employment consideration on apprentice level positions, subject to any collective bargaining agreements, and the standards approved by the Division of Apprenticeship Standards.
 - b. To interview all qualified candidates referred by the committee and to not reject any of these individuals without reasonable justifications.
 - c. To request construction trades unions to dispatch qualified individuals referred by the Academy Steering Committee by name when feasible, as permitted under the appropriate union Master Agreement, and rules and regulations of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards.
 - d. To make best efforts to hire candidates referred by the Academy Steering Committee when they are equally or better qualified than all other job

- applicants for the particular job opening. Offer the Project Manager the first opportunity to provide qualified individuals for employment.
- e. Good faith efforts will have been met if contractor employs one or more apprentices who are residents of Sacramento County or the District on this Project or other non-District projects.
- f. Failure of an employer to employ one or more apprentices who are residents of Sacramento County or the District will require such employer to employ local student(s) that have participated in the Construction Technology Academy when such student(s) are available for dispatch from the Project Manager and are qualified to perform the responsibilities of the position.
- 3) To maintain records that document compliance with this agreement and to provide such records to the Project Manager, General Contractor or the Academy Steering Committee upon request.
- 4) In the event that my business subcontracts a portion of the work agreed upon in its contract with the General Contractor, I agree to be responsible for ensuring that my subcontractors comply with all terms and conditions under this agreement, and the appropriate union Master Agreement.
- 5) Nothing in this agreement precludes my business from assigning existing employees to work on this project.

Dated:	
	Company Name
•	Signature
_	
	Printed Name & Title of Authorized Signer
_	
	Address
	Name of Prime Contractor
•	Contractor's License No.

DOCUMENT 00 65 36

GUARANTEE FORM

	("Contractor") hereby agrees that the	
("Work" of Contractor District ("District") for the fol	r) which Contractor has installed for the Sacramento City Unified Solowing project:	chool
PROJECT:		
("Project" or "Contract") has	been performed in accordance with the requirements of the Contra k as installed will fulfill the requirements of the Contract Document	
in workmanship or material to connection with such replaced defined in Public Contract Coo	epair or replace any or all of such Work that may prove to be defect ogether with any other adjacent Work that may be displaced in ment within a period of two (2) year(s) from the date of completion de section 7107, subdivision (c), ordinary wear and tear and unusuable date of completion is	n as
reasonable period of time, as being notified in writing by th	ned's failure to comply with the above-mentioned conditions within determined by the District, but not later than seven (7) days after the District, the undersigned authorizes the District to proceed to hat de good at the expense of the undersigned. The undersigned shall or upon demand.	- ve
Date:		
Proper Name of Contractor:		
Signature:		
Print Name:		
Title:		
Representatives to be contact	ted for service subject to terms of Contract:	
Name:		
Address:		
Phone No.:		
Email:		
	END OF DOCUMENT	



SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. Modernization Projects

- **Access**. Access to the school buildings and entry to buildings, classrooms, restrooms, mechanical rooms, electrical rooms, or other rooms, for construction purposes, must be coordinated with District and onsite District personnel before Work is to start. Unless agreed to otherwise in writing, only a school custodian will be allowed to unlock and lock doors in existing building(s). The custodian will be available only while school is in session. If a custodian is required to arrive before 7:00 a.m. or leave after 3:30 p.m. to accommodate Contractor's Work, the overtime wages for the custodian will be paid by the Contractor, unless at the discretion of the District, other arrangements are made in advance.
- **1.2 Keys.** Upon request, the District may, at its own discretion, provide keys to the school site for the convenience of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to pay all expenses to re-key the entire school site and all other affected District buildings if the keys are lost or stolen, or if any unauthorized party obtains a copy of the key or access to the school.
- **1.3 Maintaining Services.** The Contractor is advised that Work is to be performed in spaces regularly scheduled for instruction. Interruption and/or periods of shutdown of public access, electrical service, water service, lighting, or other utilities shall be only as arranged in advance with the District. Contractor shall provide temporary services to all facilities interrupted by Contractor's Work.
- **1.4** <u>Maintaining Utilities</u>. The Contractor shall maintain in operation during duration of Contract, drainage lines, storm drains, sewers, water, gas, electrical, steam, and other utility service lines within working area.
- **Confidentiality**. Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of all information, documents, programs, procedures and all other items that Contractor encounters while performing the Work. This requirement shall be ongoing and shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract and specifically includes, without limitation, all student, parent, and employee disciplinary information and health information.
- **1.6 Work during Instructional Time**. By submitting its bid, Contractor affirms that Work may be performed during ongoing instruction in existing facilities. If so, Contractor agrees to cooperate to the best of its ability to minimize any disruption to school operations and any use of school facilities by the public up to, and including, rescheduling specific work activities, at no additional cost to District.
- **1.7 No Work during Student Testing**. Contractor shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District's request, coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, not performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State or Federally-required tests.

2. Badge Policy for Contractors

All Contractors doing work for the District will provide their workers with identification badges. These badges will be worn by all members of the Contractor's staff who are working in a District facility.

- **2.1** Badges must be filled out in full and contain the following information:
 - **2.1.1** Name of Contractor
 - **2.1.2** Name of Employee
 - **2.1.3** Contractor's address and phone number
- **2.2** Badges are to be worn when the Contractor or his/her employees are on site and must be visible at all times. Contractors must inform their employees that they are required to allow District employees, the Architect, the Construction Manager, the Program Manager, or the Project Inspector to review the information on the badges upon request.
- **2.3** Continued failure to display identification badges as required by this policy may result in the individual being removed from the Project or assessment of fines against the Contractor.

3. <u>Insurance Policy Limits</u>

All of Contractor's insurance shall be with insurance companies with an A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII. The limits of insurance shall not be less than:

Commercial General Liability		\$1,000,000 per occurrence; \$2,000,000 aggregate
	Spire Little	

4. Project Labor Agreement/Payroll Records

The District has entered into a Project Labor Agreement ("PLA"), which covers this Project.

Accordingly, the following provision is added as Section 26.4.6:

As Contractor and its subcontractors have agreed to be bound by the terms of the PLA entered into by the District November 16, 2017, Contractor and its subcontractors may be excused from uploading CPRs electronically using DIR's eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each record manually using the DIR's iform (or current form) online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html , or by using a more current application and URL. However, within ten (10) days of any request by the District or Labor Commissioner, Contractor and its subcontractors shall provide CPRs showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time, and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the Contractor and/or each subcontractor in connection with the Work.

15. <u>COVID-19 Safety Requirements</u>

Contractor shall, at its cost, timely comply with all applicable federal, State, and local requirements relating to COVID-19 or other public health emergency/epidemic/pandemic. Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, Contractor and Contractor's personnel, subcontractors and suppliers shall continue to comply with all applicable terms in the California Department of Public Health's State Public Health Officer Orders.

16. COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Requirements

Vaccination Requirements

Contractor shall fill out, sign, date and submit to District the COVID-19 Vaccination/Testing Certification Form, attached hereto as **Attachment "A."**

According to the August 11, 2021, California Department of Public Health ("CDPH") State Public Health Officer Order ("Order"), a person is "fully vaccinated" for COVID-19 if two weeks or more have passed since they have received the second dose in a 2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna or vaccine authorized by the World Health Organization), or two weeks or more have passed since they received a single-dose vaccine (Johnson and Johnson[J&J]/Janssen).

Pursuant to the CDPH Guidance for Vaccine Records Guidelines & Standards, Contractor shall only accept the following as proof of vaccination:

- (a) COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card (issued by the Department of Health and Human Services Centers for Disease Control & Prevention or WHO Yellow Card which includes name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and date last dose administered);
- (b) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card as a separate document;
- (c) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card stored on a phone or electronic device;
- (d) documentation of COVID-19 vaccination from a health care provider;
- (e) digital record that includes a QR code that when scanned by a SMART Health Card reader displays to the reader name, date of birth, vaccine dates and vaccine type; or
- (f) documentation of vaccination from other contracted employers who follow these vaccination records guidelines and standards.

In the absence of knowledge to the contrary, Contractor may accept the documentation presented in (a) through (f) above as valid.

Contractor shall have a plan in place for tracking verified Contractor personnel vaccination status. Records of vaccination verification must be made available, upon request, to the local health jurisdiction for purposes of case investigation.

Contractor personnel, including any and all tiers of subcontractor, supplier, and any other personnel entering the Project site, who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, must be considered unvaccinated.

Weekly Testing Requirements

Contractor shall ensure that Contractor personnel, including any and all tiers of subcontractor, supplier, and any other worker entering the Project site, who are unvaccinated or who are not fully vaccinated and have filed a valid exemption with Contractor are required to undergo diagnostic screening testing, as specified below:

(a) Contractor personnel may be tested with either antigen or molecular tests to satisfy this requirement, but unvaccinated or incompletely vaccinated workers must be tested at least once weekly with either PCR testing or antigen testing. Any PCR (molecular) or antigen test used must either have Emergency Use Authorization by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or be operating per the Laboratory Developed Test requirements by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

(b) Unvaccinated or not fully vaccinated Contractor personnel must also observe all other infection control requirements, and are not exempted from the testing requirement even if they have a medical contraindication to vaccination, since they are still potentially able to spread the illness. Previous history of COVID-19 from which the individual recovered more than 90 days earlier, or a previous positive antibody test for COVID-19, do not waive this requirement for testing.

Contractor shall have a plan in place for tracking test results and conducting workplace contact tracing, and must report results to local public health departments, if applicable.

[ATTACHMENT "A" ON NEXT PAGE]

ATTACHMENT "A" COVID-19 VACCINATION/TESTING CERTIFICATION

Contractor:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
("Order"), that all public and grade twelve, unless exempt, effective October 15, 2021. Fu	Public Health ("CDPH") requires, pursuant to its August 11, 2021, Order private schools serving students in transitional kindergarten through are required to verify the vaccine status of all K-12 school workers, or pursuant to the Order, all such schools are required to verify that cinated or undergo weekly diagnostic testing.
approved Resolution No. 3233 and Staff, providing that as opartners, contractors, and other partners.	d of Education of the Sacramento City Unified School District ("SCUSD") : Mandatory COVID-19 Vaccination for Eligible, Non-Exempt Students of January 31, 2022, "all non-exempt SCUSD staff (including SCUSD ner individuals who work directly with students and SCUSD staff on vaccinated prior to performing services at District facilities.
In light of these requirement Project site(s) :	s, Contractor certifies that personnel <u>providing services at District's</u>
\Box Have all been fully v	vaccinated in accordance with District policy.
fully vaccinated have	fully vaccinated, but those who are unvaccinated or not e filed a valid exemption from vaccination with Contractor ekly diagnostic testing in accordance with District policy.
COVID-19 requirements for ful not fully vaccinated or decline	the District's Project site will need to comply with the CDPH Order's lly vaccinated personnel or unvaccinated personnel. Personnel who are to state their vaccination status will be treated as unvaccinated, and e CDPH Order, and all applicable state and local laws for vaccinated and
CERTIFICATION	
I,that I have made a diligent effo	, certify that I am Contractor's and ort to ascertain the facts with regard to the representations made herein.
Date: _	
Proper Name of Contractor: _	
Signature: _	
Print Name: _	
Title:	